Counclil

kent.gov.uk

AGENDA

Kent County Council

REGULATION COMMITTEE MEMBER PANEL

Wednesday, 27th February, 2019, at 10.30 Ask for: Andrew Tait
am

Hythe Sports Pavilion, South Road, Hythe Telephone 03000 416749
CT21 6AR

Membership

Mr A H T Bowles (Chairman), Mr S C Manion (Chairman), Mr J M Ozog, Mr R A Pascoe and
Mr P M Harman

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public)

1.  Membership and Substitutes
2. Declarations of Interest for items on the agenda

3. Application to register land known as Hythe Green at Hythe as a new Town or
Village Green (Pages 3 - 24)

4. Application to register land known as Oakwood Park at Maidstone as a new Town
or Village Green (Pages 25 - 34)

5. Other items which the Chairman decides are Urgent

EXEMPT ITEMS

(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items. During any such items
which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public)

Benjamin Watts
General Counsel
Tuesday, 19 February 2019






Agenda Item 3

Application to register land known as Hythe Green at Hythe as a
new Town or Village Green

A report by the PROW and Access Manager to Kent County Council’s Regulation
Committee Member Panel on 27th February 2019.

Recommendation: | recommend that the applicant be informed that the
application to register the land known as Hythe Green at Hythe as a Town or
Village Green has not been accepted.

Local Member: Mr. M. Whybrow (Hythe West) Unrestricted item

Introduction

1. The County Council has received an application to register land known as Hythe
Green at Hythe as a new Town or Village Green from Mr. D. Plumstead (“the
applicant”) on behalf of the Shepway Environment and Community Network. The
application made on 11t March 2016 was allocated the application number
VGAG667. A plan of the site is shown at Appendix A to this report and a copy of
the application form is attached at Appendix B.

Procedure

2. The application has been made under section 15 of the Commons Act 2006 and
the Commons Registration (England) Regulations 2014.

3. Section 15 of the Commons Act 2006 enables any person to apply to a Commons
Registration Authority to register land as a Village Green where it can be shown
that:

‘a significant number of the inhabitants of any locality, or of any
neighbourhood within a locality, have indulged as of right in lawful
sports and pastimes on the land for a period of at least 20 years;

4. In addition to the above, the application must meet one of the following tests:
* Use of the land has continued ‘as of right’ until at least the date of
application (section 15(2) of the Act); or
» Use of the land ‘as of right’ ended no more than one year prior to the
date of application’, e.g. by way of the erection of fencing or a notice (section
15(3) of the Act).

5. As a standard procedure set out in the 2014 Regulations, the County Council
must publicise the application by way of a copy of the notice on the County
Council’'s website and by placing copies of the notice on site to provide local
people with the opportunity to comment on the application. Copies of that notice
must also be served on any landowner(s) (where they can be reasonably
identified) as well as the relevant local authorities. The publicity must state a

T Reduced from two years to one year for applications made after 15t October 2013, due to the coming into
effect of section 14 of the Growth and Infrastructure Act 2013.

Page 3



period of at least six weeks during which objections and representations can be
made.

The application site

6. The area of land subject to this application (“the application site”) consists, as the
name suggests, of a recreation ground of 16.5 acres (6.7 hectares) in size
situated immediately north of Hythe Bay Primary School, extending between its
eastern boundary with St Leonard’s Road and its western boundary with St
Nicholas Road in the town of Hythe. The land is an area of open space, fenced
(partly by stone wall) around its perimeter with paths crossing through its centre
installed by Hythe Town Council in the early 2000’s. It is predominantly grassed
save for:

a. afenced children’s play area to the north west;

b. a tarmacked area to the north which is used for public car parking (since
1966); and

c. an asphalt all-weather floodlit play area (installed in 2001) to the west.

7. The application site is shown in more detail on the plan at Appendix A.
The case

8. The application has been made on the grounds that the application site has
become a Town or Village Green by virtue of the recreational use of the land by
local residents for a period in excess of twenty years.

9. Included were 44 user evidence questionnaires in support of the application. A
summary of the user evidence submitted in support of the application is attached
at Appendix C.

Consultations
10. Consultations have been carried out as required.

11.The local KCC member, Martin Whybrow, wholly supports the application and
believes that the site meets the statutory requirement by virtue of having been
used for in excess of twenty years by a significant number of inhabitants as of
right in lawful sports and pastimes. Mr Whybrow further states he has lived in
Hythe for more than twenty years and this land has been in continuous use, to the
best of his knowledge, for all this time and for many decades before that.

Landowner

12.The application site is owned by the Hythe Town Council (the Town Council”)
and is registered with the Land Registry under title number K945878. The Town
Council inherited local governance from Hythe Borough Council as part of Local
Government reorganisation in 1972.

13.The Town Council has objected to the application for the reasons set out below.

Page 4



Legal tests

14.1n dealing with an application to register a new Town or Village Green the County

Council must consider the following criteria:

(a) Whether use of the land has been 'as of right'?

(b) Whether use of the land has been for the purposes of lawful sports and
pastimes?

(c) Whether use has been by a significant number of inhabitants of a particular
locality, or a neighbourhood within a locality?

(d) Whether use of the land ‘as of right’ by the inhabitants has continued up
until the date of application or, if not, has ceased no more than one year prior
to the making of the application?

(e) Whether use has taken place over period of twenty years or more?

| shall now take each of these points and elaborate on them individually:
(a) Whether use of the land has been 'as of right'?

15.The definition of the phrase ‘as of right' has been considered by the House of
Lords. Following the judgement in the Sunningwell? case, it is considered that if a
person uses the land for a required period of time without force, secrecy or
permission (“nec vi, nec clam, nec precario”), and the landowner does not stop
him or advertise the fact that he has no right to be there, then rights are acquired.

16.In this case, the application site forms part of an established recreation ground
and, as such, there is no suggestion that any use of the land has been with force
or in secrecy. However, in cases where land is owned by the local authority, it will
be important to determine whether or not recreation use of the application site by
the local inhabitants has been by virtue of any form of permission. Use which is in
exercise of any permission (express or implied) will not be ‘as of right’.

17.Local authorities have various powers to acquire and hold land for a number of
different purposes to assist in the discharge of their statutory functions. For
example, a local authority can acquire land specifically for the purposes of
providing housing or constructing a new road. The mere fact that a local authority
owns land therefore does not automatically mean that the local inhabitants are
entitled to conduct informal recreation on it. However, local authorities do also
have powers to acquire land for the purposes of public recreation, such as playing
fields and parks. In those cases, the land is provided specifically for the purposes
of public recreation.

18.In considering a Village Green application in relation to local authority owned
land, it will therefore be important to identify the powers under which the land is
held by the local authority: if the local authority already holds the land specifically
for the purposes of public recreation, then use of the application site is generally
considered to be by virtue of an existing permission and, hence, is not ‘as of
right’.

19.In this case The Town Council, as well as providing detailed reasoning for
opposing the application, which is included within the main case file, has

2 R v. Oxfordshire County Council and another, Sunningwell Parish Council [1999] 3 All ER 385

Page 5



summarised its objection, as being made on the basis that users of the
application site have not indulged in lawful sports and pastimes as of right but
instead by right, by virtue of an historical covenant. Additionally, or alternatively,
the Town Council considers that by hosting events (which it has detailed and
described) on the application site and asserting a right to exclude the public from
the land or parts thereof, it has interrupted user of the application site and
evidenced an intention not to dedicate the application site for use as a Town or
Village Green.

20.The application site was originally sea, then silted up and became beach. It has

21

historically been owned by the Town Council and its predecessors (being known
then as the Corporation). In 1853, plots of land adjoining the application site were
sold to several private individuals. As part of that sale individuals were subject to
a Covenant ensuring observation and compliance with conditions. One such
condition stated “The piece of land marked on the plan as Archery Arboretum
cricket ground and Bowling Green is reserved by the Corporation for those
purposes or for other similar uses for the amusement recreation or benefit of the
public | perpetuity — the same will be forthwith enclosed............... No part of that
piece of land is to be hereafter applied to building purposes”

.By further Deed dated 1862, this condition was strengthened by specific

covenant.

22.Thus, it seems clear that the application site has been historically owned by the

Town Council and both it and its predecessors have ensured recreational use by
the public for that time. The application site continues to be provided by the Town
Council as a recreation ground, and used as such by local residents, and there is
nothing to suggest that it is no longer held by the Council for such purposes.

23.In Beresford®, the House of Lords considered the effect of local authority

ownership on an application to register land as a Town or Village Green and Lord
Walker said this: “where land is vested in a local authority on a statutory trust
under section 10 of the Open Spaces Act 1906, inhabitants of the locality are
beneficiaries of a statutory trust of a public nature, and it would be very difficult to
regard those who use the park or other open space as trespassers... the position
would be the same if there were no statutory trust in the strictest sense, but land
had been appropriated for the purpose of public recreation”.

24 .More recently, in Barkas?, the High Court considered the effect of land that was

laid out as a recreation ground by a local authority under section 80 of the
Housing Act 1936. The judge held that the local authority had a power to provide
a recreation ground and, if it did so, the public were legally entitled to use the
land; it would be absurd to regard the public as trespassers on the recreation
ground under those circumstances.

25.In this case, there is little doubt that the application site was originally acquired,

and indeed continues to be held, by the Town Council specifically for the
purposes of public recreation. Thirty-three of the witnesses attest to knowledge of
a cast iron plaque erected in the northern boundary of the site which details the

3 R(Beresford) v Sunderland City Council [2003] UKHL 60 at paragraph 87
4 R (Barkas) v North Yorkshire County Council [2011] EWHC 3653 (Admin)

Page 6



gift of the land by covenant in 1862 to the Town Council and the fact that by this
gift the land is reserved for public recreation. Therefore, any recreational use of
the land as has taken place has been ‘by right’ and not ‘as of right’.

26.The fact also that the evidence presented shows the existence of relevant
Byelaws is also strong evidence to support the fact the land has been held for the
purposes of open space. In this respect, the Corporation of Hythe made specific
Byelaws on the 18 April 1883 which were allowed (formalised) by the Local
Government Board in May 1883; these Byelaws were made under Section 59 of
the Hythe Improvements and Waterworks Act 1874 with respect to Public
Pleasure Grounds of which grounds the green in question today forms part.

(b) Whether use of the land has been for the purposes of lawful sports and
pastimes?

27.Lawful sports and pastimes can be commonplace activities including dog walking,
children playing, picnicking and kite-flying. Legal principle does not require that
rights of this nature be limited to certain ancient pastimes (such as maypole
dancing) or for organised sports or communal activities to have taken place. The
Courts have held that ‘dog walking and playing with children [are], in modern life,
the kind of informal recreation which may be the main function of a village green’™.

28.The summary of evidence of use by local residents at Appendix C shows the
activities claimed to have taken place on the application site. These include dog
walking, playing with children, kite flying, ball games, cycling, picnics and jogging.

29.As such, it would appear that the land has been used for a range or recreational
activities.

(c) Whether use has been by a significant number of inhabitants of a particular
locality, or a neighbourhood within a locality?

30.The right to use a Town or Village Green is restricted to the inhabitants of a
locality, or of a neighbourhood within a locality, and it is therefore important to be
able to define this area with a degree of accuracy so that the group of people to
whom the recreational rights are attached can be identified.

31.The definition of ‘locality’ for the purposes of a Town or Village Green application
has been the subject of much debate in the Courts. In the Cheltenham Builders®
case, it was considered that ‘...at the very least, Parliament required the users of
the land to be the inhabitants of somewhere that could sensibly be described as a
locality... there has to be, in my judgement, a sufficiently cohesive entity which is
capable of definition’. The judge later went on to suggest that this might mean that
locality should normally constitute ‘some legally recognised administrative division
of the county’.

32.In this case, the applicant has stated on the application form the locality or
neighbourhood relied upon in support of the application is South Ward, Hythe and

5 R v Suffolk County Council, ex parte Steed [1995] 70 P&CR 487 at 508 and approved by Lord
Hoffman in R v. Oxfordshire County Council, ex parte Sunningwell Parish Council [1999] 3 All ER 385
8 R (Cheltenham Builders Ltd.) v South Gloucestershire District Council [2004] 1 EGLR 85 at 90

Page 7



the applicant has attached a map to his application showing that area. A copy of
this map is attached at Appendix B.

33.1n light of the other issues arising in this case, it is not necessary to consider this
point in detail, but it would not be unreasonable to assume that the relevant area
in this case was the electoral South Ward of Hythe. An electoral Ward has been
found acceptable in these circumstances and the majority of witnesses, who have
submitted statements, appear to come from this area. In addition, the land is
provided by the Town Council for its residents and all the user evidence
questionnaires all come from residents of Hythe.

“a significant number”

34.The word “significant” in this context does not mean considerable or substantial:
‘a neighbourhood may have a very limited population and a significant number of
the inhabitants of such a neighbourhood might not be so great as to properly be
described as a considerable or a substantial number... what matters is that the
number of people using the land in question has to be sufficient to indicate that
the land is in general use by the community for informal recreation rather than
occasional use by individuals as trespassers’’. Thus, it is not a case of simply
proving that 51% of the local population has used the application site; what
constitutes a ‘significant number’ will depend upon the local environment and will
vary in each case depending upon the location of the application site.

35.1n this case, the evidence of use summarised at Appendix C indicates that the
land has been in regular usage for recreational purposes. 35 of the users attest to
having used the land on a daily basis, with several others (including those whose
properties overlook the land) referring to having observed use by others on a daily
basis. Statements such as ‘there was always someone else there when we
visited appear on a number of occasions within the user evidence questionnaires
and the general impression from the evidence as a whole is that the land has
been used in a manner entirely consistent with its status as a recreation ground.

36.As such, there is little doubt that the land has been used by a significant number
of the residents from within Hythe and/or the electoral Ward of South Hythe.

(d) Whether use of the land ‘as of right’ by the inhabitants has continued up
until the date of application or, if not, ceased no more than one year prior to the
making of the application?

37.The Commons Act 2006 requires use of the land to have taken place ‘as of right’
up until the date of application or, if such use has ceased prior to the making of
the application, section 15(3) of the 2006 Act provides that an application must be
made within one year from the date upon which use ‘as of right’ ceased.

38.1n this case, the application is made under section 15(2) of the 2006 Act and there
is no evidence that actual use of the application site for recreational purposes
ceased prior to the making of the application. As such, this test is met.

(e) Whether use has taken place over a period of twenty years or more?

" R (Alfred McAlpine Homes Ltd.) v Staffordshire County Council [2002] EWHC 76 at paragraph 71

Page 8



39.1n order to qualify for registration, it must be shown that the land in question has
been used for a full period of twenty years. In this case, use ‘as of right’ did not
cease prior to the making of the application in 2017; the relevant twenty-year
period (“the material period”) is calculated retrospectively from this date and is
therefore 1996 to 2016.

40.The user evidence submitted in support of the application (and summarised at
Appendix C) demonstrates that use of the application site has taken place in
excess of the required twenty-year period. Accordingly, this test is also met.

Conclusion

41.In order for the application to succeed, all five of the legal tests set out above
must be met; if one test fails, then the application as whole falls to be rejected.

42.There appears to be no dispute that the application site has been used for
recreational purposes, without challenge, for a period in excess of twenty years
continuing until (and beyond) the date of the application.

43.However, the crux of the matter is whether that use amounted to trespass by local
residents (i.e. ‘as of right’) or whether it took place in exercise of an established
right (i.e. ‘by right’); the distinction between the two is critical to the success or
otherwise of the Village Green application. In this case, the evidence very much
suggests that the application site is under the ownership of Hythe Town Council
and is reserved for the purpose of public open space. Deeds of 1853 and 1862
both refer to the land being reserved for public recreation and a relevant covenant
(1862) was provided to ensure the provision of recreational use by the landowner.
The current Registered Title shows that Hythe Town Council owns the land
(although there is no current reference to the covenant within that document). The
provision of Byelaws is further strong evidence to prove that the land has been
held for the purpose of public open space as the byelaws would only be able to
apply against and be enforceable in relation to the public open space land.

44.That being the case, regardless of whether any, or even all, of the other relevant
tests are met, the fact that the application site appears to be held for the purposes
of public recreation, both during the material period and for that matter for a very
long time preceding that, presents a knock-out blow to the possibility of
registering the land as a Village Green.

Recommendation

45.1 recommend that the applicant be informed that the application to register the
land known as Hythe Green as a Town or Village Green has not been accepted.

Accountable Officer:

Mr. Graham Rusling — Tel: 03000 413449 or Email: graham.rusling@kent.gov.uk
Case Officer:

Mr. Chris Wade — Tel: 03000 413421 or Email: chris.wade@kent.gov.uk

Page 9




The main file is available for viewing on request at the PROW and Access Service,
Invicta House, County Hall, Maidstone. Please contact the Case Officer for further
details.

Background documents
APPENDIX A — Plan showing application site

APPENDIX B — Copy of application form
APPENDIX C — Table summarising user evidence

Page 10




616000

815500

=
¢ i "

qrr-'!L.n
O

E=

r—
=t Sl A
e
e -

T
o s

e

P ia= =’
=
T

7

.\-'. ..’\\\

i

Vo3

T

e ]

el
=

o

e
l

.
— 1 oy b 5
= * N P HELRR
o . i dre L LY "
-

el
-

T,
Ce—r
dm—

L
e
S
-

o !

bt 5
L

o
g

-

P T e T ety o
oo e T P X P T

OOSFEL

00s¥eElL



ARV v AT 1y

=

¥ ¥
.:f "
Y
-
L]
;”
ER = x

Page 12




FORM CA9
Commons Act 2006: section 15

Application for the registration oi; a town or village
green "

This section is for office use only

Official stamgf® 2 Application number
o WONS ATT 2005 '
KEA COURTY COUNGIL VOAGET
REGIS TRATION AUTHCRITY
1 1 MAR 2016
” VG number allocated at

registration

Applicants are advised to read ‘Part 1 of the Commons Act 2006: Guidance to applicants' and to note:

» All applicants should complete boxes 1-6 and 10-12.

* Applicants applying for registration under section 15(1) of the Commons Act 2006 should, in
addition, complete boxes 7 and 8. Any person can apply to register land as a green where the
criteria for registration in section 15(2) or 15(3) apply; (NB 15(4) is obsolete).

*  Applicants applying for voluntary registration under section 15(8) should, in addition, complete
box 8. Only the owner of the land can apply under section 15(8).

There is no application fee.

Note 1 1. Commons Registration Authority
Insert name

of commons To the:

registration

authority.

KEMT’ C@JQNT\/ C0uMC\L~

Tick the box to confirm that you have enclosed the appropriate fee for this
application: ]

Page 13



Note 2 2. Name and address of the applicant

If there is more
than one applicant, | Name: Do Id FComSTEe R D . .
list all their names ’ THEEHEPLIAY ENWR-oN MEWT @nd (O un vY NETwat i

and addresses in | postal address:
full. Use a separale

State the fulf title =

of the organisation
if the applicant is a :
body corporate or

an unincorporated lf<(: NT EOSter de*
association. If

you supply an

email address in Telephone number: _
the box provided, — -

you may receive
communications Fax number:
from the
registration
authority or other E-mail address:
persons (e.g.
objectors) via
email. If box 3 is
not completed all
correspondence
and notices will
be sent to the first
named applicant.

Note 3 3. Name and address of representative, if any
This box should
be completed if Name:
a representalive,
e.g. a solicitor, is
instructed for the Firm:
purposes of the
application. If so

all correspondence
and notices will be
sent to the person
or firm named here.
If you supply an
email address in
the box provided,
the representative Postcode
may receive
communications
from the Telephone number:
registration
authority or other
persons (e.g. Fax number:
objectors) via
email.

Postal address: 1”-)

E-mail address:

Page 14



)

Note 4

For further details
of the requirements
of an application
refer to Schedule

4, paragraph 9 or
10 to the Commons
Registration
{England}
Regulations 2014.
Section 15(6)
enables any period
of statutory closure
where access {o
the land is denisd
to be disregarded
in determining the
20 year period.

Note §

This box is to
identify the new
green. The
accompanying
Ordnance map
must be at a scale
of at least 1:2,500,
or 1:10,560 if the
fand is wholly or
predominantly
moorland, and
show the land by
means of distinctive
colouring within an
accurately identified
boundary. State the
Land Registry title
number where if
known.

4. Basis of application for registration and qualifying criteria

If you are the landowner and are seeking voluntarily to register your land
tick the following box and move to box 5:

]

If the application is made under section 15(1) of the Act, tick one of the following
boxes to indicate which particular subsection and qualifying criterion applies to

the case.
M
]

If section 15(3) applies indicate the date on which you consider that use as of
right ended:

Section 15(2) applies:

Section 15(3) applies:

If section 15(6) is being relied upon in determining the period of 20 years,
indicate the period of statutory closure (if any) which needs to be disregarded:

5. Description and particulars of the area of land in respect of which
application for registration is made

Name by which the land usuality known:

HYTvwe CReew

Location:

HYTRE KenT

Common land register unit number (only if the land is registered common land):

Tick the box to confirm that you have attached an Ordnance map of
the land:

]

Page 15




Note 6

it may be possible
fo indicate the
locality of the green
by reference to

an administrative
area, suchas a
parish or electoral
ward, or other area
sufficiently defined
by name (such as
a village). If this

is not possible an
Ordnance map
should be provided
on which a focality
or neighbourhood
is marked clearly at
a scale of 1:10,560.

Note 7
Applicants should
provide a summary
of the case for
registration here
and enclose a
separate full
statement and all
other evidence
including any
witness statements
in support of

the application.
This information

is not needed if

a landowner is
applying to register
the land as a green
under section
15(8).

Note 8

Use a separate
sheet if necessary.
This information

is not needed if

a landowner is
applying to register
the land as a green
under section
15(8).

6. Locality or neighbourhood within a locality in respect of which the
application is made

Show the locality or neighbourhood within the locality to which the claimed green
relates, either by writing the administrative area or geographical area by name
below, or by attaching an Ordnance map on which the area is clearly marked:

gou’i’l-l:' AR B
Hy 7THE
KeNT

Tick here if a map is attached:

O

7. Justification for application to register the land as a town or village
green

The \arvi A haoiea beow U
hua_’ﬂ:a 2 don e e local\
2%0(' P Q\‘\ Sports < SO {scm%*l'lw\eb
,Qar OULT Owe WAIdeaD MFD'@*QU’Q‘
“oar=

8. Name and address of every person whom the applicant believes to be
an owner, lessee, proprietor of any “relevant charge”, tenant or occupier of
any part of the land claimed to be a town or village green

HyTe Towon Coonei

-

&

Page 16



Note 9

List or enter in

the farm alf such
declarations that
accompany the
application. This
can include any
written declarations
sent to the applicant
{e.g. a letter), and
also any such
declarations made
on the form itself.

Note 10

List all supporting
consents,
documents
and maps
accompanying
the application.
Evidence of
ownership of
the land must
be included

'] for voluntarily

registration
applications. There
is no need o
submit copies of
dacuments issued
by the registration
authority or to which
it was a party but
they should still

be listed. Use a
separate sheet if
necessary.

Note 11

List any other
matters which
should be brought to
the aftention of the
registration authority
(in particular if a
person interested in
the land is expected
to challenge the
application for
registration). Full
details should be
given here oron a
separate sheet if
necessary.

9. Voluntary registration — declarations of consent from any relevant
leaseholder of, and of the proprietor of any relevant charge over, the land

10. Supporting documentation

E v inence CQDuSsT LONN ARES

11. Any other information relating to the application

L KEPwt vy DisTRUCT CouNain

Page 17




Note 12 12. Signature
The application

must be signed Date:

by each individual " Ho N&Mﬂﬂ' 2ollo

applicant, or by the
authorised officer

of an applicant Signatures:
which is a body
corporate or an
unincorporated
assaciation,

REMINDER TO APPLICANT

You are responsible for telling the truth in presenting the application and accompanying
evidence. You may commit a criminal offence if you deliberately provide misleading or
untrue evidence and if you do so you may be prosecuted.

You are advised to keep a copy of the application and all associated documentation.

Data Protection Act 1998

The application and any representations made cannot be treated as confidential. To determine
the application it will be necessary for the commons registration authority to disclose information
received from you to others, which may include other local authorities, Government Departments,
public bodies, other organisations and members of the public.

A copy of this form and any accompanying documents ma y be disclosed upon receipt of a
request for information under the Environmental Information Regulations 2004 or the Freedom of
Information Act 2000.

Page 18



0} ‘ayjAH jo 3doad ay) o} pue| jo 3331d B se U3AIE SEM ,UIBID), Y] Apeqg | juasaud — y96T umoq pieyary
ju3a10 Ino s3] jjuo Ying aq |
pInoys $50] 9]qiia) e aq p|nom pue suolesiuedlo JuaJayip Jo 50| Aq unu uny ‘gnja Suluuny {sieah g9) Alawg - Agsot)
pasn ipaniea Aygiy si pue ApuUNWWOD 3y AQ Pasn (jam S| puel syl ‘SNJUID ‘shey ‘shiey 100q ‘193143 ‘||leqlood Alleq | usssud - 0s6T AdIsy ulepw
*sdiej uny ‘sAep Bupuiesy Bop 'smoys janJy
*Z98T 24 03 3oeq Sunjep JULUIA0D Jo padp Aq payaatold sy "l Ja)s5uow ‘snaup ‘siey Jooq ‘Ajpainb uaaid ay)
Uo pjing 03 |BJOWL| PUE [njaWIeys ag pinom 3| jije pjo pue SunoA | Aolua ‘uaJpiyd yum jjeqiooy ‘soudid ‘SuiAly any (siedA p)
Ag pasn 51 3 ‘ayiAH Jo umo] 3yl oy Jutod B2y e ) adeds uado siy) | ‘pUnod jleqiayseq ‘ease Aepd s,ualppy) ‘Suluuny Aeg | juasasd - T1T0Z X0 Aey sIy
‘peq Jo poo3d
JUEU3A0D Aue J33u0] OU PN NOA pue ‘|eIoLUW| 3G [|1S PINOM )
‘siyy punoae Aem JnoA ajejndiuew pinoys noA j uaal ‘798t Aeniqaq | s3an BuiAy ‘eale jjeqiayseq ‘ease Aejd ualppyd {s1eah p)
ZT 01 %2eq 3upep JueuaAdd Jo paap Aq paraalaid s pue) s|y) 219 Jiejund ‘snadi) ‘siiej Joog ‘Sunjjem Aneqg | wasaud-1107 X0 rg4n
*suo(}elauald aininy 1oy uaalg ay)l se 1day aq p|noys siy] ‘sawed pue
syuods Aejd “yied ayy asn 03 ualpiyapuess Aw yym uaaig ay) oy of ‘|eat1say
| mou puy ‘uing pjnom eyl SuiyiAue ‘saysuelq Sui3aa||od ‘suyuog 3Y1AH ‘saey yooq ‘Bunjjem ‘Fuddpys ‘siapuno.
s8uims ,pjo, ay3 uo SujAeld oy ‘saysng ay) Fuiquupd o} sjydy ssesd ‘Buiuieya Asiep ‘s, s1uid ‘syysy ssead ‘Suihy
WOy ‘uisnod pue s1351s Aw Yiim dn Suimoad Awt jo ped sey 3) may) 31N ‘sJapit Junjs 100} Biq ‘snauid ‘hey ‘sied (s2eah g5) uewsa|o)
Aw uy uaat sAemle sey uaalld ayl pue aylAH u| PaJq pue LIog SEM | aj0Wal ‘Jjo8 ‘siuua) ‘jjeqyooy ‘Jydiu sujuog Ajeg | uasasd - gt auydasor iy
jwajqoud e aq |j1m S53308 ‘OS|y "UlewWwal [jim adeds |euoijealdal
OU pue ‘310w pjing 0} Juem |I3uUnNo3 3y} uayl Jing st jood Sujwunms
3Y3 H L0 3Y) Ul (1eU 3Y) 3q pInom ) “yaed-1e3 e soj ydadxa Suipjing
ou pue saguajjeyd |eIaA3s U33( Sey 2J3Y] ‘pue| Siy) uo pjIng 0y
sydwia)ie |RI3A3S UaDQ aAeY alay| "sjuaas Buisies pun) asned pood
USIBYIP PUE SHEJUNS 'SISNINNT JO) PISN UDBY SBY 1| "SI0)S|A pue
aYlAH jo sjdoad ay) Jo) ease [euo|iealdal e uaaq sAem|e sey uaald {s1eaA Qo)
ay]l -sieah anoy joj 1dadxa ayjAY ul paal aABY | uraq SEM | 32UIS | u1p|IY2 Yyum SuAejd ‘jeqiooy ‘Suydhd ‘asioiaxg Aneg | juesaud — G567 | ajeo)) uyorialad
*Aolua o) Aqgeg pue SjuaAa Juisiel
13ylopy sasn Apseyd ‘punoidaey ‘sasnana ‘Agana ‘|eqiooj ‘siie} Joog puny Ajlueys ‘smoys Sop ‘siiej unj ‘siey} Jooq {sieah gg)
‘goeds uado-apim )1 10) a|doad jeao) ay) 0} 1o e yuom stpuej siyl | ‘Supjjem Fop "BuyaAd ‘Suiuuni ‘Aq3ny ‘jjeqiooy Areg | juasaud —g/6T Aatej ue 2BIN
yo2m [eAlISa4 SYIAH Supanp sasnaagd ‘saejuny
*so1und 0} 08 ‘uaup|iyapuesd yum 3udeid "3uiAy Hoom {sieah g9) ssading
aney pue awod ajdoad ‘uo Aejd 03 uaip|iyd Joj azeds uaaud uadp | auy ‘Buipid ‘Buryem ‘Bwely Buiquuya s,ualppy) | esAepinod | juasald — zG6T saJuely SiN
‘suoileIauad ainyng pue ualpjiyd Jno Joj adeds vazud
Jayjoue 124 Aeme je) ||im Juawdojaaa(] 31yesl Jo) eale YNIIYIp
Apealje ue uj soeyI 2R 31D [|IM Y uo padofaaap J| “sJuaplsal uaJpiyd yum ulAejd ‘Bupjiem 3op (s1edh )
JIe 03 eale Ajuawe dqnd e se J3| aq p|noys pue] ay} aAaijaq | ‘pue] 8y} uo pjay syuaaa Suipuanie ‘Supjjem Aeq juasald- 1861 Japiv 4’y
asn jo
ETETTTITT g asn jo adAy Azuanbauig asn jo poiad awepn

Alewwns 3d2uapia]j Jasn

Page 19



Au |2 Ajjie) sIYy3 pey aa,| u22J49 Jno Jnoqe ajeuolssed Aiaa 93} |

‘siuua) ‘|jeqiooy ‘suide)d usap|iya Aw ‘suods

Aneq

uasaud - 15T

Asayar uAjue

usJp|lyapueID (sieah 0z) nsjeg
yYhm dupjjem pue 3ujAeld ‘Supjjem Bog Ajeqg | juasaid - 5561 -sanbaer yagqoy
"SJa%|eM SOp WOoJ) Aty 3y} || 3sn ul §1 3| [|2q1oo; SuiAeid sawesd 1aY30 pue siapunol uo)yeH
aJe shoq awn-ySiu 1. yoo| noA §| “moys s8op ‘sney ‘sie} Joog ‘uaap|iyopuead pue uaappiya yum 3uide|d Apeg sieah 79 ejeqJeg s
“ay1| Aw JO 1524 3y} 10} OS Op O} I
3NUIIUOI 0 YSIM | ‘ajl| Aw |8 uaaso ay) Buisn paiofus ue pasn aney | BunoAd pue BuiAly 2y ‘eause Aejd ‘Bupyjem Sog Ajleg sieaj §9 weyesgy | SIN
‘'u@a4d pue uado pajeulw eoIun
s1 1] "eaJe duiuiel] Ag3na au01SaY|04 ‘SASNDUID ‘Siiey J00q SN2J12 3y} 40 SJ1BY 1004
10} @2eds Ajlunwwod v 'asn sade e jo ajdoad jey) aseds jeos e si Buisia ‘Buiynempng ‘jjeqiayseq ‘punosBied (sie0h ¢T) UBWIBD)
1| "UMO] s1Y3 JO s3unj pue Leay 3yl sl 3| ‘BYIAH Joj) [eTIA S1 uaalg 3yl 3y} 0} uaup|iys Aw 3uiy|e) ‘jleqiooy ‘unjjepn Aeq | uasaad - To0Z 1 Adiyosg
S "SuUa21)) padejueape
552] N0 3PNIXS ||Im 3N |BI213W W0l Juduewad Buysiqelsa
Aq jey3 pue uo ing s 11 jo ped j padueyd Ajjejuawiepuny aq (|im
ainjeu pue J2)de4e4 ayl 18yl pautaduod Asa we | ‘Ajaasy Pesau
pue as)je1dos ‘}aaw o) sade |je jo ajdoad smoj|e os|e 3] ‘Buiag)lam pue
yieay |ejusw ‘yJuawdo|aaap p|1yd 10y AYIAIIIE |BYA B — uoisialadns *53UAAD ANUNWIWOI J3YI0 pue
Jnpe [ewiuiw Yyum Ajaanjeass Aejd pue asojdxa 0} Ajjunyioddo ue SJ1B} 'SaSNIUID ‘Siiey J004 papually ‘moraBpay
u.pjIya Jno smojje pue sale e o ajdoad ||e 0} 3344 s Y "sasod.nd palojdxa pue suieyd Asiep apew ‘say|q Jjay}
|euociiealdal pue |e120s 10} aYlAH jo ajdoad ay) Aq Ajjueisuod apu o} uaippyopuesd duiyoea) yied ayl o) {s1e3A p1)
pasn s jey) adeds u2aJd pajeulweuodun ‘JBJA B ) U3AID YA | uaip|iyopuead Bupyes ‘SuyzAs ‘Sutuuni Sunjjiep Ajeq | wesasd —T00Z uewlan ela)
T "SalJIAIOE |BAIIST) SYIAH pue
J)ej uny ‘sndatd ‘sdiey y00q Y3 Suisip Jed Aed
3JueIIYUI JIBL] SI Y "way) 3day ag 03 31 JO) BAIBSIP UBIP|IYD 8Y3 0} uaipjiyopueif yeai3 pue ualpjiyapuesd {sawn {s1e8A 52) [JEITT]=D)
angY 'Ya) Aolus o3 ajdoad Joj saoeds uado may ayl Jo auo 5| SIYy| Bunye) ‘Suiddoys o3 0} Suissoud ‘Sunjjep Soq £} Apeq uasasd — 0661 N Allag sS4
"uo jinq 3g 01 Jou pue patolua aq 0} aY)AH jo ajdoad
9y} o} punoad siy} aaed oym Ajlwe) LolNH ay3 0] 3 nsul Jeaug e Apjaam
3q pinom 3| ‘sany s,a|doad Auew ui ped juenodwy ue sAed pue pasn SaWIIBLLI0S
([2M s1 @2eds siyf ‘3YlAH JO SIONSIA 13 S)UBPISAI BY) 0) 3|gISSaIIE ‘Allwey yim Suied ‘Anep (s1ead gz)
Al22.) 193u0| ou sem 2deds uado siyl J sso| Jeasd e aq pjnom )| | ‘site} g ey Jooq o) Suod Ynay Buiynd ‘Buiyjepn | sawnawos | juasasd — 9861 uMOo(g EJIUIBA

‘||e 40 aFejueape ay) 01 ‘uiede sease 3WOS Ul PIBeInoaua ag pjnod
Yorym ‘siamolj a1 mopeaw plim Auew pajiods eale siyl mou pasn
Juimowr amsualt ay) 210)ag "JYPIIM 0] ajge)iear seate Suisealzap

2Y1J0j [e}A 3J0W 3Je 514) se yons sadeds Sujyieasq pue dn ying
A|Buiseasaul Sujwodaq S| 3YIAH Jo eale Sy} asnedaq osje inq ‘3 sy
10 uonuAUL jew3ii0 aY) sem S1y) 3snedaq ysnl Jou os sujewad J 1By}
wepodwi 51 1 3jdoad Jaylo Aq pue| 3yl Jo asn, ‘c 38ed uo pajediput
5B 2SN 104 3{qIxXa|) Aj|e10) St pue| Yl Aem sIy1 U] ‘yans se paiolua ag

{sieah 1g)

Page 20



‘Ausenb sjjoyaN 1B pue) 3|qeUNS B §I 343Y) USYM

}O9Mm |eA11sa) aYlJAH ‘smoys Sop
‘SY10MaILY "SNUID ‘SJ1ey Uny ‘Saiey 1004 BYIAH

{sieah gg)

‘U3349 3YIAH ay3 uo }ing Eulaq 21)uad alnsia) e 01 123lqo Ajduoays | Jo sued Jayjo o) ssade ‘BuljpAd ‘Bupyjem og Aeg | juasesd —g9/6T U rY 4N
"UaaJo 3y} pue as0|2 ade)way
S 7§ t ‘€ sasnoy 3unesedas |jem Aepunoq
ay) jo apis y3nos ayl uo yimoisiapun
*Ajunwwod ayy Jo Jyauaq ayj Joj paulejuiew ay} Jea)d 0} pad|ay aaey sincqysiau yum (s1eah 1)
pue pauje)al sie saxeds uado Jeyy (e1jUassa S| ) JeY) aAaq | | JaylaBo) ‘uoilexelas pue as51249xa 10) Supjjepn | Ajjevoiseasg | juasasd - 5/6T pAoj] umeg
£1Uncd Ayl J,uop Jo ‘Jood 34E oYM ISOY) JNCJE JEYM ‘)] pJOyYe ued
oym ajdoad 10} 313y sqnj2 Jo Ajuaid aie 343y "a8ueyd o) pamoje
pinoys 31 Aym aas 1,uop ‘[19unoa ay) Aq Ajano] 1day 51 sseud ay)
‘a10wAue 1eyj a3s Jou op | puejdu] jo uapied ay} aq o} pasoddns s
Juay ‘udall pue a3l sjey) Ya| aaymiue Ajpiey s) asay] *Ajep y asn
osje sieydjeaym ul s|doad e noge Supjuiyl INoYUm Wopaaly *SJ12) JOO{ puncie J0o) ‘sije) J0oq Miep Jajseaue’
|234 NOA U0 104 213 sied wody AemAue yjem ued noA adejd ayy s) sy, PU231IE 43NS Ul 1B3S UO )15 ‘PUNOIE J{EM | saw)) aary) | ~xoidde siead gp 4 epulEd
-22eds uado 934) — UdaJD BY} UIBWAI pjNOYS
sy} ‘jesodoud siyy jsurede AjBuoals Aiaa (334 | “Bunjjem pue 351213x3
104 uado uaalg dady pInoys am ey A|Juoals 0s |38y | 'MOoU 359q0
ale oym a)doad Jo Junowe ayy yup ‘sadeds uado ayi sl aw s1oespe (sseah gg)
Jeyl Suiyl ayl sYIAH 01 Suirow a10jaq uosiad suods uasy e sy sAejdsip j40mal)) ‘saiey 1004 ‘)leqion) ‘1540 Ajeg | uasaud - 086T WS uy 13394
Suisieios ‘saey jealysa)
‘[1eqicoy ‘Bunpis ‘punosSAeld ualppya | aylAH ‘syana) 8iq ‘sasndnd ‘saejuny ‘smoys Sop
‘sasieay) Bunjjaael) ‘syanJy Siq ‘ung uny ‘jeannsad ayiAH ‘s ‘Bupjjem op ‘sojund Aiwe) ‘punoiBield ay) {ssead oz)
319 ‘unJ uny ‘jealsad aYIAH ‘smoys Sop ‘sajey yo00g ‘siejuny ‘snaud 03 UzJp|Iyapuesd pue uadpjiyd dupyed ‘Sujiemm Ajeq asasd - 5661 E EREIEY
'syads J1ayy Aejd ues Aay) os ‘a13y] 13A0 532314 pue maydau
Aw Sunjel mou pue 3op Aw Bupjjem mou 0] piy B sem | usym suods
SuiAe(d wouy Suimold aj Aw jo ed Jolew e uaaq sey j| ‘'uaalg *saY SutAy
3y} uo p|Ing 03 JueMm 12uno) 1PIsIg Aemdays Jeyy paasnadsip |99y | ‘122112 ‘||eqiooy SuiAeid ‘Sop ay) Sunjjem Ajreq SIE9A TE Aalyar penig
‘uaa.3 s aYIAH Jo ajdoad ayy Jno, uo Suip|ing Aue Juaaaid o3 wuioy
vonedydde snyy 1apisuol asea|d asea|d ‘ssasn AUBW 0OS JBAC BABY SuAyy ayy
am se Aolua 03 suonesauas asow Auew o4 pue| uado ulew?al pNoys ‘she|dsip ja0maay ‘syysiu asyuoq ‘Buiylequns (saeah g7)
siyy ‘Ajwiey Aw pue ay) Aw jo Jed Jolew e uaaq sey uaal9 3YjAH ‘SIBpUNDJ a3 ‘||egloo) ‘dop ay) Bupjjem Apeq | 1ussoud — 98T | Aluyar Jaj9d ueas

'suoljeiauad aininy 1oy 1day aq pinoys siyl 38yl Suculs

Alan |39y | 05 uzap|Iyapuesd Al mou pue uipjIy? Aw os|e Yug 3ouls
U330 ay} pasn aa,| ‘ainyng 4o) suepd Mau pue s1294A QT 15| Y1 Ul dn
1jing 0s uU3aq sey ayjAH se oFe sieal Og pIp am uey) mou 3aeds uado
2J0W pa3u am ‘) Jalye 3Ooo] sh pjol sAemje aylAH Jo aduapisad 1sed
J3gWaWAL ued | du)S "ayYlAH o1 aa4y S) Jey) adeds uado ue yans ‘ay|

Buidwed ‘|eansay sylAH
yJom pue jooyas o) Sufem ‘saiudd ‘sswed
‘SasnAI ‘saey ‘s3ums ‘sied alowal ‘o3

(sse24 p9)

Page 21



‘uew A1ana 10y Aol e uaaq sey uaarg ay) aYylAH JO Juapisal e sy ‘yaed Aejd asn o) uaspjiydpuelss ‘Bupjiem SoQ Ajleg | juasaid — 59T SWIS 3UUAT
'sasodand Suipping ‘Apadoad
40j pasn Buiaq 1 Jo wed Aue sapn|Jaid JULUAA0D 3Y] ‘JUBUSAODD An0 0] Juddelpe S13YINS 334) UMOIZI3A0
31 P23p a3yl JO swusl 3yl yum aul u sasodind jeuoneasdal oy puEe ysiqqnu paieajs osje areH "Suidly (s1e2A 1)
sa3e ||e JO SJONSIA pue SJUBpISal AQ pasn adeds uado ue s| uaalg ay] 3 ‘uauppys yum sawes |jeq ‘Bupnjjem o Apjaapn | Juasaud — /6T 1035 Y 2]
USIPIYI S,UppWd || uaippyrpuesd
AN0 JO 3 BS Y] 104 20 0F 1A 104 Swes Ay} ulewas 1snw | Aw yum eale Aejd s,uaipjiya pue sawed ‘SuiAy
S|4} PUB UC }jINg U33Q JAA3U SBY Y3NS 52 pue Jueuanol Sujpue)s-Suo| 214 19)2uD JjeqIayseq ‘jieqioo) Suipnjul
e AQ paJaAca os|e St 1| "ainsia) 38 Aolua 03 auoiusas 10} adeds uado sawed BuiAe|d ‘uaa48 ay) ssosoe syjediooy
payanojun ue s §l SUoseal Auew 104 s1} ‘siead Auew a0y ssaddiy SNOLIBA JO asn 3y} A umoy aYlAH Jo eaue (s2eaA ZT)
Aep pue sjuapisal |e20| Ag pasn uaaq sey YA ul ualug ayl 13y)o 0} ssadae uimesd ‘Buiyjem Sop Sujjepm Aleq | juasaid - 007 ppny [Reynw JW
*3YIAH asueyua AjnJj [jim sniels uaald aBe||ia e uied ‘uoisiruadns
01 31 Suimojje pue aJe |e1dads Alaa e $) aYIAH ‘Alunwiuod |B30| 3y JApunN 51330035 35N J0 3j3A) 0] UBJP|IYI ||BWS
0} S pue| siy) Juepodw moy 335 0) I|ge aJe 210343Y] am ,Ua3uD JO} eaJe 94es 2 51 ) pue eale Aejd s .uaJip|Iyd
ay3, pajo0}43A0 11 JBY] SBM ISNOY N0 JYSN0g 2m UOSES UIBW | BYj} 35N osjy satund ‘Burdfy 313 ‘133013 ‘Jleqlooy
3y ‘anjae Sulaq ajdoad ‘aayjem Bop Moy yum dn Bupjasw 13 s3op | Aejd o) uaalg ayl asn AjJURISUOI URLP|LYIPUERLS
112y} Bupyjjem ajdoad ‘jooyas |eao] 03 Bupjiem uzapjiyd Sunol ayie ‘ssaumo Sop Jayjo Suizeaw Supjjem
pjo pue 3unoA yjoq Aq Ajiep pasn si }| ‘SJuapisal |EJ0] ||e JO JjBuaq 8o( '0313 Ju0J} B3 ‘133415 YSiH '9'] aYIAH Jo (siead 1)
a1y Joj adeds uaa.d UadG |e1Dads Alaa e S| uMouY S 1 SB U345 3], sued JuaJagp yreas 03 uaals) ssolde Supjjesm Ajeg | asaud - €002 PPNy epul sa
syJomadl) aney
‘Buisieinos ‘Bunjjem Sop ‘smoys Sop 01 pasn ‘syonuy 8iq ‘saie} uny ‘snauId ‘|eAlSa4
‘sliej 100q ‘SJIBj UN4 "URIID) BY) JIBAD |OOYIS 0} UIPJIYD O} PAYEM AYIAH ‘saey Jooq ‘punoasdield ol uaipjiyd (s1eah gg)
-Aejd mou uupiyapuess Aw ‘pade|d uapjiyd AW Py e se paleld | puesd Jupjel ‘smoys Sop ‘Bunjjem op ‘Supjlem Apeg | uasaid — zG6eT 1921y Apuey
'0S UIBLW3. BuiAy ayy 1932110 pue jjeqiooy '8l
0} 1 YSIm pue uaaig ajoym ay) o) ssadde papadwiun paiofua aaey | ualppiya Aw yum sawed Suideld ‘Sunjiem Bog Apy@am sieah zy 15914 premoH
"s| )1 se aylAH ui uo Suio8 Buipjing
yanw 003 5,213y} sa2ejd uaaid uado ano |je Suiso| Ajjenpeld ase ap (s1e34A 1)
*213 jood Sujwiwims e Buip|ing Joj pasn Ji aweys 1eald e aq pjnom Y Juiyjem Bog Apeg | juasald - 8007 1304 Uylaqez||3
‘diyspualyy | Buixe|as 10) ¥snd Bunnus ‘uiddoys 104 umo) ay
pue asiJiaxa 4oy sBuiiayied so) ‘Bunoh ay) 1oy Ajjelradsa uaalg 0} Aj2jes Supjjem ‘sayiq J1ay) apu o) Sujuiea)
3aYIAH a3 paau apn “spaids pue AJlunwiwiod Jno yealq |[im Suipping uaJp|iya Aw ‘SuiAy 1y ‘soiund ‘sBusayles
Iy} pUE AJuniuwos e se AJlunwwod ino Suidaay Joy anjea yaiy jo Ajlwey yhm siapunoy -uasp|iyapuesd Aw mou
si aseds ay| ‘SunoA o) pjo woly saowaw Ajjedadsa ‘Adoisiy Jo 30| pue uasppyd ‘JjasAw 1o} syed ‘Bupyjem Sop
B 350 [{Im BYIAH JO SJUDpISaL 3Y] J 350) 3] |IIm 20eds Ajunwiwod ay) | Jooyas 03 uzJp|iyd Supjiem ‘|ooyas o] 3uryjem Ajeq siedh zy Jojied |o1e] siN
‘uo }Ing 2q 0} pue| ay) YSim Jou op |
‘aYIAH jo adoad ay) o) 1asse ue s| puncJd siyl |ooyas Aeg ayIAH
‘papooy) st punotd umo uaym qnpo AQant FU0ISIY|04 YL | PUE SJIBY JDWILINS SMOYS Y1 Aully ‘Siiey |ooyds {sse24 05)
*sJie} ‘snad ‘saey 100q ‘smoys s8ogq ‘s11e) 1004 ‘S11BY ‘SN ‘smoys Sop papuany Alleg | juasasd — 96T IEN I EN]

Page 22



934} Jo} s3ainunpoddo siayo Yaym azeds Ajuawe ajqen|ea e s| pue|
341 "1502 INOYUM pue Jauuew papadwiun Aj2113Ua Ue uj SPUNOLINS

{suods jewaoju

(sJeah gz)

ay) pue ayiAH jo ajdoad ayj 0} 2jqe|ieae s| pue) ay3 Jeyl arepaldde | | [(e) 1342149 jjeqiooy ‘asiaaxa 0jos ‘Supjjiem Soq Apjeapy | juesaud - 9ggT | uojue) Azpysy i
{99 0} samasap 1l se )l Payoud
JIitm sniels uaald ade|a |eidiyo 1 Suiues 1sanbal ay) Jo sw)
Y BPLIIA0 OF YUM [12UN03 JOLISIP PUE |1DUNOD UMO] 1no | sasodand
Fuipjing 404 pajdde aq o3 51 ) jo Led ou pue uoileatdal aqnd "3J9y3 aoead
10} poAIasal si pue| siyl,, AlJe3|D 3]s 510108J3Uaq 9Y) — Aymiels Aq | uaaud ay Aofua ‘spusuy yum Jeyd pue saysuaq
P21321014 "a1minj pue juasaid ‘Ised s, uapisas Ag panjea pue PaAo| | uo NS *sJiey J00q ‘SIIey ‘SN2 ‘Ajwe) 1§ uaIpyd {s1ed4 01) sIEITNEDTIT S
yonw — Apealje uaaid ade(|ia 1IN0 AjPAIIDAY3 SI UBBIG BYIAH Ajano] Aw yum Aed ‘auo)e yjem ‘sBop Fupyjjem Apeqg | uasasd — 5002 uelif SIw
‘uoiaeaiie anbiun s,aylAY JO 550| 3yl Ul 3NSAI PINOM UIBID (sseah g)
a3yl uo Buipping "aylAH ul Juswdoaaap Yyanw 00) ApeaJ|e s| a1y ] 932 A1k} ‘snaad Buinsia ‘Bupjjem SoQ Mreq juasaid -g007 Juns uyor
"aY1AH jo ajdoad ay) 01 yuej poosd ul pue|
5143 19| oym Jojaejduaq ay) Jo AJowaw ay] 0] Jjnsul Ue Y J3PISUCI
052 | “jueq |euEd 3Y) Wo pasn Jed Jo JO| B pUe spuaaam ay)
1e suods pasiuedio s0y pasn Buiag pue| ay) Jo Isow Yyum [eued ayy
0} PeOJ YINOS PUE PeOY SPJEUOST IS pUR PROY S5IM ) USIM]aq pue) ‘Apwey ynum sawes eq Sudeid pue siey Jooq
ayy ul yuawdojasap IqRIDPISUOD UDSH] SBY 243N} 213Y PAA)| AAeY Sunisia ‘ney pue snaad o) ppyapuead Supjey {s129A 6)
| 9JuIs sJead 8y} uj "padojanap aq pjnoys pue| siyy aA3ljaq Jou op | ‘dols sng Jumo) oxul Sunyjiem ‘Sunjiem Sog Apeg | asaud - 900z 8unus yiny pun
‘Buiuajysuiy s| J1yedy punose
Bupanaouew Jo Judnoyy ayj — i 1sujede AjSuouls Aan |2y pue
|esodoad siyy Je pajjedde we | ‘jerdos Jo Buiddoys /sio10p/3iom oy
1 3q — 8)N0J uleW A S] SIY) — IFYMAIBAS SNq fj|em | "aALIp 10U op
| se Ajlep aynou styl asn |(13s | 3ng ‘piojysy o) paduey> sey ade|d yiom 'gnja Buluung /qnpa Aieros fsdoys/umoy
AW "Aep Aiana 55320€ SIY] pasn aAeY PUE //gT 83UIS |eDIP3A] SYIWS /snq 03 Bupjjem piom 03 Supjjem ‘sispunol
Jxauod 1e payiom aaey | ‘saied anjuoq ‘sjydy ssead ‘'saps 0} 1952142 ‘3uiA)) a3y ‘Bupyjem Bop ‘s1ydy ssesd (siead gg)
suims wouy ‘aus s1y) Suisn uaaq asey | Yjem 0} 3| SEM | 3IUIS JDAT ‘sJje} J00q ‘SasSNJI ‘'S1je) uny ‘sapl|s ‘sSuimsg Ajeqg | juasaid - $96T nema15 uyor
*a2eds uado
AJ2AD| @Y1 uInJ pue 31 J9A0 B PlING |[IM NOA 3 UO PjINg NCA 33U
JUBUDA0I 3Y1 AQ 0] papualul SEM 3| SB UIIIG BY) SB 143) B pjnoys
aylAy jo ease Jejnaiued siyy |234 1§ sadeds uado ano Sujso| aue ‘Buiyiequns ‘sied pajjonuol (s1edh ot)
3 "uo Juipjing Joj Jou asn 0} 3YlAH jo 3jdoad ay) Joj 5| uaaug 3y a10wal ‘spods soopino ‘“und ‘Burgjem Fog Ajeg | wasaxd —g/5T HemIs If
‘sjuaaa Ajlreyd
J3Y10 pue smoys Sop |BUOISEII0 3Y) pue {s1ealh zv) yuws
sney jJooq Suiuoddns ‘Sop Aw uiyjem 2oy pasn Apaap | wussasd — £/6T | uuy ausuy) sy

"PlES 3 ued siy} 3Jaym Seale ma) AJSA € ae 3Jay | "3uo Ul UaaI3
3U) PUE IB SUIABY 3JBS BY] 3I3YM MOUY 2JOYM B SB AJunwIwiod
ayL ‘Aejd 03 uauppIyd JNOA MOj|e O3 BJES 51 }| “P|IY2 PUB UBWIOM

‘|lemsad aylAH ‘smays Sop ‘siey 100q

{s1eah 0g)

Page 23



‘Ayunwwod (sse24 G5)

|E20] BY) JOJ EBIR S53IDE PUE UOJIEIDAI |ENA € S| UBID 3Y | "sJ1B} 1004 Suipualie ‘Bupjjem Jeuoliealday Ayaapn | juasasd = 0961 8unoy udasnep
‘ugaq shem|e sey se Aofua

0} suopesaual aining ayl 40j Ya| 2q pinoys pue ajdoad |eao| au} (sieah gg) 28euun )
Aq uayo pasn pue paaoj Yyanw s1 3YIAH 18 U0 3yl saaljaq Ajwuly | Dijjem 3INsIP| pue spods awos Meg | juasasd — 86T uyor piaeq
sawoid (02e sieaA £y) JMquinl
65TV U0 J1)Jel) wiouy Aeme “Me Ysal) 104 adeds ajqe|ieay ‘ualpjiyapuesd yum SuiAeid ‘Sop Sunjjepn Apjeam | juasaid —oppT Ausep pieui8ay

{51224 8)
Suijjepn | Ajjeuoisedag | asasd — 00z Aira) uesng

‘ainsis|

Page 24



Agenda Item 4

Application to register land known as Oakwood Park at Maidstone
as a new Town or Village Green

A report by the PROW and Access Service Manager to Kent County Council’s
Regulation Committee Member Panel on 27t February 2019

Recommendation: | recommend that the County Council refers the application
to the Planning Inspectorate for determination.

Local Members: Mr. R. Bird and Mr. D. Daley (Maidstone Central) Unrestricted item

Introduction

1. The County Council has received an application to register land known as
Oakwood Park at Maidstone as a new Town or Village Green from Mr. |. Cooper,
Mr. P. Harper, Mrs. M. Lakeland, Mr. J. Lakeland and Mrs. J. Kehily (“the
applicants”). The application, received on 25" January 2017, was allocated the
application number VGAG671. A plan of the site is shown at Appendix A to this
report.

2. Members should be aware from the outset that the purpose of this report is not to
determine this application, but rather to consider whether the County Council is in a
position to determine this application, for the reasons which are set out in more
detail below.

Procedure

3. The application has been made under section 15 of the Commons Act 2006 and
the Commons Registration (England) Regulations 2014.

4. Section 15 of the Commons Act 2006 enables any person to apply to a Commons
Registration Authority to register land as a Village Green where it can be shown
that:

‘a significant number of the inhabitants of any locality, or of any
neighbourhood within a locality, have indulged as of right in lawful sports
and pastimes on the land for a period of at least 20 years;

5. In addition to the above, the application must meet one of the following tests:
* Use of the land has continued ‘as of right’ until at least the date of
application (section 15(2) of the Act); or
* Use of the land ‘as of right’ ended no more than one year prior to the
date of application', e.g. by way of the erection of fencing or a notice (section
15(3) of the Act).

6. As a standard procedure set out in the 2014 Regulations, the County Council must
publicise the application by way of a copy of the notice on the County Council’s
website and by placing copies of the notice on site to provide local people with the

" Reduced from two years to one year for applications made after 15t October 2013, due to the coming
into effect of section 14 of the Growth and Infrastructure Act 2013.

Page 25



opportunity to comment on the application. Copies of that notice must also be
served on any landowner(s) (where they can be reasonably identified) as well as
the relevant local authorities. The publicity must state a period of at least six weeks
during which objections and representations can be made.

The application site

7.

The area of land subject to this application (“the application site”) comprises
playing fields of approximately 32 acres (13 hectares) in size, situated between
Queen’s Road and Oakwood Road in the town of Maidstone. The application site is
shown in more detail on the plan at Appendix A.

. The application site has recently been secured by way of palisade fencing along its

southern and western boundaries, thereby precluding public access (the northern
and eastern boundaries already being secured by way of a stone wall and
neighbouring properties). Prior to the erection of the palisade fencing, access to the
site was freely available from the footway of the road crossing the Oakwood Park
site.

Members may be wondering whether the nature of the application, as a school
playing field, makes it capable of registration as a Village Green. There is some
case law in this regard, notably in R (Cotham School) v Bristol City Council [2018]
EWHC 1022 in which Judge Sir Wyn Williams decided that registration of the land
as a Town or Village Green would not have precluded the carrying out of the
School's duties to provide suitable outdoor space for P.E, albeit more
inconveniently. The judge rejected the contention that registration of the land was
precluded by virtue of the fact that it was a school playing field (on the basis that
there was no statutory incompatibility between the two uses).

The case

10.The application has been made on the grounds that the application site has

11.

become a Town or Village Green by virtue of the actual use of the land by the local
inhabitants for a range of recreational activities ‘as of right’ for more than 20 years.

Included with the application were 32 user evidence questionnaires and statements
from local residents detailing their use of the application site over a period in
excess of twenty years, as well as photographs of recreational activities taking
place on the site. A further 61 evidence questionnaires were subsequently
submitted in support of the application. The evidence refers to use of the
application site for a number of recreational activities, including dog walking,
blackberrying, photography and nature observation.

Consultations

12.Consultations have been carried out as required and the following responses have

been received.

13. Twenty-eight local residents wrote in support of the application, with many adding

to the evidence of use already submitted in support and/or confirming wider
community use of it for recreational purposes over many years.

Page 26



14.Three members of staff from the St. Augustine Academy (including the Principal)
and local Member Mr. D. Daley wrote in objection to the application

Landowners

15.The western part of the application site is owned by the Kent County Council (as
registered with the Land Registry under title number K942821) and leased to the
St. Augustine Academy. The eastern part of the application site is owned by the
Oakwood Park Grammar School (under title number K982273), the land having
been transferred to it in 2011 by Kent County Council.

16. An objection to the application has been received from Invicta Law, representing all
three of the above organisations (“the objectors”), and is made on the grounds
summarised below:

The material provided by the applicants is nowhere near sufficient to
demonstrate that the relevant legal tests have been met;

Access to the application site was via limited points which would necessarily
have restricted the walking routes used on site to linear ‘rights of way’ type of
use (as opposed to a wider right to recreate on the land);

Any recreational use has predominantly been concentrated around the
perimeter of the application site and has not taken place on the parts of the
application site laid out as sports pitches;

The majority of those using the site live in the immediate vicinity of it such that
use has not taken place by a significant number of the inhabitants of Maidstone
and, in any event, Maidstone is not a qualifying locality;

There has not been a sufficient quantity or quality of recreational use to justify
registration;

Use of the application site has not been ‘as of right’ due to the existence of
signs stating that the land is private property during the relevant period, and
some use has been by virtue of implied permission (e.g. by school pupils
outside of school hours);

Village Green status is incompatible with the use of the application site as a
school playing field (and would prevent it from being used as such); and

The construction of a car park on an area excluded from the application site,
which was subject to planning permission, means that the whole of the
application site ought to be considered as being affected by a ‘trigger event’ for
the purposes of Schedule 1A of the Commons Act 2006.

Applicant’s response to the objection

17.As required by Regulation 25(3) of the 2014 Regulations, copies of all of the
representations received were sent to the applicant for comment.

18.The applicant’s position is:

e The application is soundly based on the requirements of the legislation;

e There is substantial evidence to support the application; sufficient for a
registration to be made and accepted;

e The whole of the application site has been used for well over a twenty-year
period for lawful sports and pastimes as shown by the submitted evidence;

e The locality is amended to Fant and Heath Wards of Maidstone Borough
Council. There is considerable evidence from people within that area and
areas immediately adjoining;

Page 27



e When reading all of the evidence in support of the application, it is clear it
covers quality and quantity in respect of lawful sports and pastimes;

e The use of the site over a long period back to the 1960’s and beyond has
been continually “as of right” and in no way can it be considered
contentious. Nobody has ever been asked to leave the site or challenged
on their use of the site; and

e There is nothing in the fact that the land is owned by the Oakwood Park
Grammar School and Kent County Council, leased to St Augustine
Academy which precludes a valid application for a TVG application under
Section 15 of The Commons Act 2006.

Legal tests and discussion

19. The responsibility for determining applications under section 15 of the Commons
Act 2006 normally rests with the County Council in its capacity as the Commons
Registration Authority. However, more recently, it has been recognised that there
may be circumstances in which it is not appropriate for the County Council to
determine an application. Under those circumstances, the application must be
referred to the Planning Inspectorate who will take on the responsibility for
considering the application (including by the holding of a Public Inquiry where
necessary) and issuing a decision.

20.The circumstances referred to above are set out in Regulation 26(3) of the
Commons Registration (England) Regulations 2014 which states that an
application must be referred to the Planning Inspectorate in cases where:
‘the registration authority has an interest in the outcome of the application
or proposal such that there is unlikely to be confidence in the authority’s
ability impatrtially to determine it...’

21.Critically, it is to be noted that the requirement to refer the application to the
Planning Inspectorate is not a discretionary one and the County Council is
under a legal duty to refer an application if the ‘confidence test’ (set out above)
is met; Regulation 26(2) states that ‘in the cases specified in paragraphs (3)
[i.e. the confidence test] and (4), a registration authority must refer to the
Planning Inspectorate for determination by it — (a) any application made to the
registration authority in accordance with these Regulations...” (emphasis
added).

22.DEFRA’s guidance? to Commons Registration Authorities in this respect states
that:
‘the regqistration authority should not refer a case simply because it has
an interest in the outcome, but where the interest would seriously call
into question the registration authority’s ability to determine it
impartially. An application relating to land owned by the registration
authority should not qualify as the authority’s role is to determine the
application in accordance with the objective criteria in the 2006 Act. Nor
should a registration authority refer a case simply because it (whether
an officer, Member, committee or executive) has discharged a function
or expressed views on a related matter in a different context. For

2 Available at:
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment data/file/477907/cra-guidance-

201504 .pdf

Page 28


https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/477907/cra-guidance-201504.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/477907/cra-guidance-201504.pdf

example, an application to register land as a new village green where
the registration authority grants planning permission for development of
the land or expressed support for the development. If the registration
authority owns the land, there might not be confidence in its ability to
impatrtially determine the application, but if an independent inspector is
appointed to determine the application then the decision will be
impartial’.

23.1t is not the first time that such an issue has arisen in this county. On 22
February 2011, the Regulation Committee Member Panel considered a case
involving land known as The Long Field at Cranbrook where the application
site was owned by the County Council and had been the subject of a planning
application for the construction of a new care home. At the time of the meeting,
the planning application had been withdrawn pending the outcome of the
Village Green application, but members nonetheless agreed, on the basis of
the County Council’s significant interest in the outcome of that case, that the
Village Green application ought to be referred to the Planning Inspectorate for
determination.

24.Similarly, on 5" March 2013, the Regulation Committee Member Panel
considered an application in respect of a piece of land at Bishops Green in
Ashford, where the County Council (as landowner) had applied for residential
development of the site. Once again, Members agreed that the County
Council’'s significant interest in the outcome of the application made it
appropriate for it to be referred to the Planning Inspectorate for determination.

25.In the current case, although no planning permission has been sought to
develop the land, the erection of the fencing has, in practice, the same effect
as any proposal to develop the land — i.e. to permanently exclude recreational
users from the application site. The exclusion of the public benefits the County
Council’'s use of the land for other purposes and there is therefore a clear
conflict between the County Council’s position as landowner and its position as
the Commons Registration Authority. The fact that the local County Councillor
has strongly opposed the application also adds weight to the argument that any
determination by the County Council could not be viewed as entirely impartial.

26.There is an additional issue in that the objectors (including the County
Council’s Property Team) have been actively engaging with the applicants in
an effort to seek an alternative arrangement with regard to access; the fact that
these discussions have been taking place very much suggest that it is in the
interests of the County Council for the Village Green application not to
succeed.

27.The difficulty for the County Council in its capacity as Commons Registration
Authority is that even if the applicants were to agree to withdraw the
application, there is no absolute right to do so and the Regulations do not
explicitly accommodate such a scenario. Based upon previous advice, the
County Council would need to advertise the proposed withdrawal of the
application and Members would then be faced with a difficult decision of
whether or not to allow the withdrawal of an application which, if withdrawn,
would be substantially to the County Council’s advantage. It would arguably be
very difficult for any decision by the County Council to withdraw an application

Page 29



in which it had a vested interest to be viewed externally as an entirely neutral
and unbiased one (as would otherwise be the case if the County Council had
no interest in the land in question).

28.Finally, there is some precedent in this regard, notably in the case of land
known as Moorside Fields at Lancasters. In that case, Lancashire County
Council, in its capacity as landowner, had opposed an application to register
land comprising a school playing field and three adjacent plots of land as a
Village Green. Part of the Village Green application site was proposed for used
as an extension to the school building. The Village Green application was
referred to the Planning Inspectorate, who went on to determine the
application; by inference, the Inspectorate agreed that there was a sufficiently
serious conflict between the Authority’s function as the Commons Registration
Authority and its capacity as landowner (and indeed Local Education
Authority).

29.As is noted in paragraph 24 above, whilst no imminent development appears to
be proposed on the application site, the erection of the fencing (at no doubt
substantial cost to the landowner) has the same effect as developing the land
in that it results in the permanent exclusion of public access. Any discussions
with a view to restoring such access merely add weight to the proposition that
the County Council could not be seen as determining the application in the
entirely impartial manner required.

Conclusion

30. The options available to the Member Panel at this stage are as follows:
e To refer the matter to the Planning Inspectorate for determination (on the basis
of the conflict of interest); or
e To decide that the application should be determined by the County Council in
due course.

31.The Officer's firm view is that, considering the comments expressed above, it
would not be appropriate under the circumstances for this application to be
determined by the County Council. Indeed, the circumstances of this application
appear to fall squarely within the provisions of Regulation 26(3), where the
Commons Registration Authority has a significant interest in the outcome of the
application, and the correct course of action in this case would be for the
application to be referred to the Planning Inspectorate for determination.

32.1f, however, Members are not minded to agree with the Officer's recommendation,
then a further report will be put to a future meeting of the Regulation Committee
Member Panel with a view to the determination of the application.

Recommendation

33.1 recommend that the County Council refers the application to the Planning
Inspectorate for determination.

3 Lancashire County Council, R (on the application of) v Secretary of State for Environment, Food and
Rural Affairs & Anor [2018] EWCA Civ 721

Page 30



Accountable Officer:

Mr. Graham Rusling — Tel: 03000 413449 or Email: graham.rusling@kent.gov.uk
Case Officer:

Mr Chris Wade — Tel: 03000 413475 or Email: chris.wade@kent.gov.uk

The main file is available for viewing on request at the PROW and Access Service
based at Invicta House, County Hall, Maidstone. Please contact the case officer for
further details.

Appendices

APPENDIX A — Plan showing application site

Page 31




This page is intentionally left blank



. £ — 4 t‘:l.,.‘\. P, . s Al
For.illustrative p_urposes\or,lx:'plxgease;codlx\sg_lt‘:ongma! appljca@oq plan for.psecise'bqypqﬁriesq"ﬁ

.\

] &)

574500

T

156000

Scale 1:5000

Land subject to Village Green application,
known as Oakwood Park at Maidstone

Page 33

Kent
County

Council
kant.gov.uk




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Application to register land known as Hythe Green at Hythe as a new Town or Village Green
	Item 03 Appendices

	4 Application to register land known as Oakwood Park at Maidstone as a new Town or Village Green
	Item 04 Appendix A


